ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 20, 2007
8:11 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 166

“"An Act relating to contributions from permanent fund divi dends
to community foundations, to certain educational organizations,
and to certain other charitable organizations that provide a
positive youth devel opment program workforce devel opnent, aid

to the arts, or aid and services to the elderly, |owincone
i ndi vi dual s, individuals in enmergency situations, di sabl ed
individuals, or individuals with nmental illness; and providing

for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 151

"An Act requiring an indemification and hold harm ess provision
in professional services contracts of state agencies, quasi-
publ i c agencies, municipalities, and political subdivisions."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 92
"An Act renoving the victins' advocate and the staff of the
office of victins' rights fromthe jurisdiction of the office of
t he ombudsman in the |egislative branch.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2007



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 166
SHORT TITLE: CONTRI BUTI ONS FROM PERM FUND DI VI DENDS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOMAS

02/ 28/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 28/ 07 (H STA, FIN
03/ 20/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 151
SHORT TI TLE: | NDEMNI TY CLAUSE | N PUBLI C CONTRACTS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOHNSON BY REQUEST

02/ 22/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 07 (H STA, JUD
03/ 20/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOMAS, JR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 166 as prime sponsor.

KACI HOTCH, Staff

to Representative Bill Thomas, Jr.

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question on Dbehalf of
Representati ve Thonas, prinme sponsor of HB 166.

JERRY BURNETT, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 166.

M CHELE BROWN, President

Uni ted Way of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support HB 166.

DI ANE KAPLAN, President

Rasnmuson Foundati on
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2007



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Rasnuson
Foundation during the hearing on HB 166.

THERESA BANNI STER, Attorney

Legi sl ati ve Legal and Research Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Addressed Amendnent 1 during the hearing on
HB 151.

MARK O BRI EN, Chief Contracts Oficer

Contracting and Appeal s

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
151.

BRAD THOMPSON, Director

Di vi si on of Ri sk Managenent

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
151.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:11:52 AM Representatives Roses, Coghill,
Johansen, Johnson, Guenberg, Doll, and Lynn were present at the
call to order

HB 166- CONTRI BUTI ONS FROM PERM FUND DI VI DENDS

8:12:26 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 166, "An Act relating to contributions from pernmanent
fund dividends to comunity foundations, to certain educationa

organi zations, and to certain other charitable organizations
that provide a positive youth devel opnent program workforce
devel opment, aid to the arts, or aid and services to the
el derly, | ow-i ncome individuals, individuals in energency
situations, disabled individuals, or individuals wth nental

illness; and providing for an effective date."

8:12: 36 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATIVE BILL THOVAS, JR, Alaska State Legislature,

introduced HB 166 as prinme sponsor. He paraphrased his sponsor
st at enent which read as follows [ origi nal punct uati on
provi ded] :

HB 166 is an attenpt to increase private philanthropy
in Alaska by giving people the option of donating a
portion of their Permanent Fund Dividend check to
their favorite charity. Al askans who make $100, 000 or
nore, rank among the lowest in the nation as far as
per cent age of incone donated to charities.

In the hustle and bustle of I|ife, we often forget
about those organizations who rely on donations and
who provide inportant services to our conmunities. HB
166 allows for a list of approved organizations to be
included with a person's PFD [permanent fund divi dend]
application and allows them to check off which
charities that they would like to donate to. 100% of
their donation will go to the charity. The sinplicity
of being able to sinply check the desired charity
while applying for one's PFD will increase the rate of
donation and give these charities another avenue to
use in their fundrai sing.

HB 166 also requires that the charity neet certain
criteria before it can be placed on the list with the
PFD applications. Anong the criteria, the charity nust
be a 501(c)(3) organization, be directed by a
vol untary board whose nenbers are residents of Al aska,
receive $100,000 or 5% whichever is less, of its
annual receipts in contributions, and the charity nust
provide a copy of an audit, for the previous fiscal
year, to the Departnent of Revenue

The Rasmuson Foundation, a charitable foundation which
makes $25 nmillion in grants each year to Al aska
or gani zati ons, has pledged to fully fund the
adm nistrative costs of the program for the first
three years of the program «creating a zero fiscal
i npact on the state in these crucial beginning years.

HB 166 gives people a sinple and convenient way to
donate to their favorite charities, who nmake a
positive inpact in our communities. | urge your
support of this inportant piece of |egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2007



8:15:29 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked how the applicant naking the donation will be
able to specify how nuch he/she is giving.

8:15:51 AM

KACI HOTCH, Staff to Representative Bill Thomas, Jr., Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Thomas, prine
sponsor of HB 166, explained that the followi ng anobunts can be
checked on the permanent fund dividend (PFD) application: $25,
$50, $75, or $100, or ten percent, twenty-five percent, fifty
percent, or one hundred percent of the anount of the PFD.

8:16:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = THOVAS, in response to a question from
Representative Roses regarding the cost of the bill after the
first three years, said the legislation sunsets after that tine
and woul d have to be reauthorized. In response to Chair Lynn,
he said anyone who decides to give to a charity through the
proposed check-off method on the PFD application would have a
recei pt of that donation to show the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS).

8:17:20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOMVAS, in response to Representative Johnson,
stated his wunderstanding that all the eligible 501(3)(c)
entities wuld be on a Ilist that acconpanies the PFD
application; however, not all organizations wll qualify. He
indicated that [the analysis portion of the fiscal note] gives
an expl anation regarding qualification.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON pointed out that the fund source is
listed under the General Fund for HB 166, while it is listed
under statutory programreceipts for a matching Senate bill. He
guestioned the inconsistency.

8:19: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS suggested that a representative from the
Department of Revenue coul d expl ain.

8:19:10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS, in response to Chair Lynn, confirmed that
a PFD applicant can designate donations for nore than one
charity on the sane form

8:19: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG  expressed appreciation of t he
generosity of the Rasnmuson Foundati on. He asked if that
foundation would mnd entering into a contract wth the state
guaranteeing that it wll pay the admnistrative costs. He
stated support of HB 166, but said he has one concern. He
directed attention to page 2, lines 20-28, which read as
foll ows:

(c) The depart nent may  not include an
educational organization on the «contribution |ist
unless the primary purpose of the organization is to
provi de vocat i onal t rai ni ng or post secondary
educati on. O her than a comunity foundation, the

departnment nmay not include a charitable organization
on the contribution list for a dividend year unless
the primary purpose of the organization is to provide
a positive youth devel opnent pr ogr am wor kf or ce
devel opnent, aid to the arts, or aid and services to

the elderly, lowinconme individuals, individuals in
enmer gency situations, di sabl ed i ndi vi dual s, or
individuals with nental illness. In addition, the

educational organization, community foundation, or
charitabl e organi zation

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, for exanple, that that | anguage

woul d preclude sonmeone from giving to a hospital, nuseum
library, and nonprofit k-12 schools, and he questioned whether
that was the sponsor's intent. He related, "... Normally, for

check-offs, as long as an organization would qualify as a
501(c)(3), that would be the donor's choice."

8:21:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS offered his understanding that any entity
qualified as a 501(c)(3) would qualify to be on the list.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that he was hoping the sponsor
woul d say that, and he enphasized to Representative Thomas the
need to scrutinize the | anguage on page 2, lines 20-28, because
it is "much narrower than any 501(c)(3)." In response to Chair
Lynn, he said he think's it may be appropriate to include the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2007



term "501(c)(3)" in the bill; however, he said he would |ike the
sponsor to be in absolute agreement with doing so.

8:22:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES surm sed that the Rasnmuson Foundation may
support the limted list of 501(c)(3) entities because it 1is
expeditious in who it contributes funds to and who it doesn't.

8:23:40 AM

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Admnistrative Services Division
Department of Revenue, prefaced his statenments by clarifying

that the use of PFDs is not the departnent's concern. That
said, he expressed concern regarding the conplexity of having a
wi de variety of choices related to ampbunts and charities. He

expl ained, "Every tine you add a choice, you add conplexity in
our paynent system [ and] you add conplexity to the

application.” He said people who apply for dividends want a
sinple application; any questions they have require themto call
t he departnent. He said that may not seem |like nuch to anyone

outside the departnment; however, if 10 percent of the people who
apply want to access the proposed program and 10 percent of
t hose people have a question about it, that nmeans 6,000 phone
calls. M. Burnett said the departnent wll work on those
issues with the bill sponsor and with the Rasnuson Foundation if
the Dbill noves forward, but there may be unintended
consequences. He noted that the only "check-off" currently on
the application is for the advanced tuition program which is
designed for applicants to put noney aside to the University of
Al aska. He explained that the departnment wites one check to
the University Foundation who adnmnisters the program and
applies the noney from each of the people [who checked that

option]. He stated, "The nore we can nmake it resenble that, the
easier it will be to adm nister for the departnent.”
8:27:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said having taught math for over 20 years,
he knows that nany people don't know percentages. He said it
may be possible that an applicant checks off "50," thinking that
it neans $50, when it really signifies 50 percent. Furthernore,
he pointed out that at the tinme of the application, a person

doesn't know what the sum of the PFD will be; therefore, he/she
has no way of know ng how nmuch noney 50 percent wll be. He
said he supports the idea behind the bill, but he said he would

like to see better clarity regarding the nunbers.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2007



8:29: 03 AM

MR. BURNETT told Representative Roses that that is exactly the
point he was trying to make. Regarding the comments
Representative Johnson nmade related to the fiscal note, he said
[HB 166] has a provision that would prohibit the departnent

"from spending any permanent fund dividend noney on it." He
said in the Senate bill, that provision was added "after our
fiscal note was done."” He conti nued:

It's not clear to ne whether or not this would be
statutory designated program receipts or general fund

program receipts. If, in fact, the bill requires a
contract with the Rasnmuson Foundation for them to pay,
it"ll probably be ... statutory designated program

receipts, and that's a change that we're quite willing
to work on in [the House] Finance Committee and make
sure that it's budgeted correctly.

8:30: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "If the Rasmuson Foundation and
the sponsor are willing to have a clause in the bill that has a
condition precedent for a contract, would the departnment be
willing to help draft that contract?"

MR BURNETT answered in the affirmati ve.
8:30:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked how many additional enployees would
need to be hired by the departnment in order to operate the
proposed pl an.

MR. BURNETT replied that the biggest challenge the departnent
woul d face would be in rewiting the conmputer program to ensure
that both the online application process and the paynent system
work properly. He said approximately 75 percent of PFD
applicants apply online. He said the departnent's fiscal note
provi des several hundred thousand dollars to acconplish that.
He stated that although the departnent anticipates hiring only
one additional enployee, the program will have "sonme effects
spread throughout the division." He said any tinme changes are
made to a program that affects every person in the state, both
the departnment and legislators can expect to receive an

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2007



i ncreased nunber of phone calls, whether or not the change works
wel | or poorly.

8:32:26 AM

MR. BURNETT, in response to a question from Representative
Roses, said court-ordered garnishnents from a PFD would take
priority over donations. In response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, he said voluntary assignnments, under
whi ch donations and the voluntary advanced tuition fall, wll

al ways come after garnishnments; therefore, there is no need to
nmake that specification in the | anguage of the bill.

8:34:12 AM

M CHELE BROWN, President, United Way of Anchorage, testified in
support HB 166. She said the bill is both good social policy
and an excellent way of pronoting sustainability for the
i nval uable services of nonprofit entities. She said Al askans
have a great tradition of neighborliness, but that has not yet
translated into cash-based philanthropy. She stated, "Despite
what nmany Alaskans want to believe, governnent can't do
everyt hing, and nmuch of what has been done regarding quality of
life cones from the work of nonprofit organizations and their

volunteers.” M. Brown relayed that the United Way of Anchorage
is a network of organizations that cares for <children and
seni ors, connects people wth heal t hcare services and

information, provides workforce developnent, and ensures that
peopl e are housed and fit so that they can get educated and hold

j obs. She relayed that that which affects individuals has
significant financial and social inpact on the comunity, as
wel | . She said the proposed |egislation would provide an easy
way for people to invest in quality of life for others. MVs.

Brown said the United Way of Anchorage stands ready to help
i npl enment this |egislation. She reveal ed that the organization
has a long history of managi ng donor-designated fundraising and
currently manages five public sector canpaigns on behalf of
governmental entities, which she said are simlar to how HB 166
is set up. She said the United Way of Anchorage could be "up
and running with the state to inplenent this as directed very
qui ckly" and efficiently.

8:37:07 AM

CHAIR LYNN expressed appreciation for the work of the United
Wy .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2007



8:37:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how nuch United Way's managenent
woul d cost the program

M5. BROWN said United Way would be working with the Foraker
Group at a cost estimated at under $100, 000. In response to a
foll ow-up question from Representative G uenberg, she confirned
that that noney would conme from the Rasmuson Foundation during
the three years before which the bill woul d sunset.

8:37:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred back to page 2, l|ines 20-28,
[text provided previously], and asked if there are any
organi zations under the unbrella of the United Way of Anchorage
t hat woul d not qualify.

M5. BROWN answer ed no.

8:38: 06 AM

DI ANE  KAPLAN, Pr esi dent Rasrmuson Foundat i on, said the
foundation is pleased to work with the State of Al aska. She
said the idea cane about a couple years ago. She said the
United Way of Anchorage does a wonderful job in facilitating
contributions; however, it only reaches a few comunities in
Al aska. Because of success of other canpaigns, she said, the

Rasrmuson Foundation thinks [the check-off system on the PFD
application] would be "a terrific way of advancing interest

around pronoting philanthropy in our state.” She echoed M.
Brown's coment that Alaska has a long history of its people
being generous in their volunteer efforts. The proposed
legislation will provide a way to help organizations that the
public has cone to depend upon deliver critical services around
t hat state. Ms. Kaplan explained that the dollars given by

i ndividual s are the nobst precious, because they can be used for
unrestricted needs, whereas nmany grants are specified for
speci fic use. She said the Rasnmuson Foundation board has nade
funds available for the first 3 years. The State of Al aska wll
wite a single check fromthe donated nonies and the United Way
will distribute those funds.

CHAI R LYNN expressed appreciation of the Rasnuson Foundati on.

8:42: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if the Rasnmuson Foundation would
remain interested in sponsoring the adm nistrative costs if the
list were opened up to all 501(c)(3) entities.

8:42:34 AM

V. KAPLAN responded that there are approxinmately 6,000
501(c)(3) entities in Alaska and if there were 6,000 choices on
the PFD application, the program wouldn't be very effective for
any of them She stated, "So, we were |ooking for a way both to
make this program rational, in ternms of providing real support
for core service providers, but also mking sure that the
organi zations that are listed have credibility with the public.”
She said to qualify, the nonprofit organization mnust: file an
annual tax return with the IRS;, have an audit; already be
engaged in individual fundraising; have a certain budget and
staffing; and have been tax exenpt for a period of tine [and]
have a voluntary board of directors who are residents here in
t he state.

M5. KAPLAN stated that the Rasnuson Foundation funds in every
area of |life, so its interest in |limtation revolves nore around
organi zations that can denonstrate a certain |evel of
professionalism so the public can have confidence in the
program

8:45: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she used to work for United Way, and
she said she knows that many groups would not be on the Iist.
She stated concerned that that nay be problematic.

M5. KAPLAN said the Rasnuson Foundation is "pretty confident
that every organization that can neet the basic criteria is
going to get a fair shake at being included.™

8:47:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Kaplan if United Way deals
with [organizations] involved with that listed on page 2, l|ine
22: vocational training or postsecondary education.

M5. KAPLAN answered that United Way would sinply be the
contractor that would ensure that the organi zations that receive
designations from nenbers of the Alaska public would receive
those dollars; United Way would be providing the technical
servi ces. She enphasized that there would be no requirenent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2007



that an organi zation be affiliated with United Wy to be part of
t he program In addition to redistributing funds received from
the state, United WAy would issue a receipt to donors, show ng
that they nade a charitabl e [donation].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what kind of controls there would
be regarding which entities wuld qualify as "vocationa
trai ning or post secondary education”

8:51: 00 AM

M5. KAPLAN answered that an entity receiving the funds would
have to be a 501(c)(3), nonprofit corporation; a for-profit
conpany, regardless of whether it has provided educational or
any other services, could not be a recipient of these dollars.
The reason, she explained, is that the public would expect to
get a tax deduction for naking the donation, and those [for-
profit] entities are not tax exenpt. Furthernore, she related
that individuals could not be recipients of the donations, for
t he sane reason

8:51:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the Rasnmuson Foundation woul d
be wlling to enter into a contract with the state, which would
make the foundation responsible for paying the admnistrative
cost s.

M5. KAPLAN answered, "Absolutely, we would."

8:53: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES pointed out the terns "vocational training"
on page 2, line 22 and "workforce devel opnment” on line 25 of the
sanme page. He asked Ms. Kaplan if she envisions any of the

apprenticeship prograns under the unbrellas of various |[abor
uni on would qualify "under this definition."

M5. KAPLAN repli ed:

I"m not specifically famliar with how those are set
up in terns of their tax status, but | know for
exanpl e Al aska Work Partnership, which is the provider
of those services for many of those |abor unions, is
definitely an eligible entity, in terns of our
funding, and | know that they are a 501(c)(3). So, |
think there's usually a nonprofit provider involved,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2007



but in terns of the specifics of the question you just
asked, | hesitate to answer, because |'m not that
specifically famliar wth their governing structure.

8:54:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL thanked Ms. Kaplan for her work and that
of the Rasnmuson Foundati on. He directed attention to page 3,
[line 15-16], which state that ["the educational organization,
communi ty foundation, or charitable organi zation"]:

(7) must receive at |east $100,000 or five percent of
its total annual receipts, whichever is less, from
contri butions;

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Ms. Kaplan if that is intended to
be individual or private contributions.

M5. KAPLAN answer ed:

That would be from any source of contributed incone.
And the rationale behind that is there are sone
organi zations that are 100 percent funded, let's say
by Medicaid or Medicare - they're not really invol ved
in raising funds from the public - and those would be
or gani zati ons t hat pr obabl y (indisc.) type of
| egi sl ation. So, we're looking at organizations that
are in the practice of receiving and requesting
donations fromthe public. That was the intent.

M5. KAPLAN, in response to a question from Representative
Coghil I, explained that 501(c)(4) organizations are involved in
| obbying activities and individuals cannot make tax deductible
donations to them A 501(c)(6) organi zation, she said, such as
a chanmber of comerce or rotary club, wusually serves its
menbers, and the purpose of that organization is to benefit a
specific group of people, rather than the public at |arge. She
said [501(c)(6)] organizations often have sister organizations
that are 501(c)(3), through which they raise tax-deductible
f unds.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that M. Kaplan's work with the
Foraker G oup has been a huge benefit to Al aska. He renmarked
that the criteria set up in order for organizations to be on the
[ist would put sone organizations on a "preferred giving list."
He asked if M. Kaplan anticipates public tension over that
i ssue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2007



M5. KAPLAN responded:

W're really looking [at] this as a rising tide and
all ships benefiting down the road, because our hope
is to really do a very extensive public canpai gn about
i ndi vi dual gi vi ng. Sonme people wll choose to give
t hrough their permanent fund, and | think other people
wi Il choose to give in another manner. | f peopl e have
their awareness raised about individual giving, if
their particular group or choice is not on this I|ist,
they still have every right to take $25 or $100 from
their permanent fund [dividend] and give it to that
organi zation - they just mght not be doing it through
t he check-off. ... Qur hope is just to raise the
awar eness around charitable giving for individuals in
general, and we see the permanent fund dividend as
just one of many tools to do that.

M5. KAPLAN, in response to Chair Lynn, agreed that the check-off
list would give an advantage to those on it. However, she said
it is estimted that 600 organizations will make it onto that
list, and any organization that wishes to qualify need only
follow the standard, best practices, governance criteria for
nonprofit organizations. She admtted that the list may not be
perfect; however, she said she thinks it is the best list that a
group of experienced nonprofit executives and donors from around
the state coul d produce.

9: 00: 59 AM

M5. KAPLAN, in response to a question from Representative Dol l
directed attention to page 1, line 25, and noted that the term
"youth devel opnent pr ogr ant is a broad description for

or gani zati ons which serve children
9:01: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d the | anguage on page 3, lines 2-3
is the only place in the bill that sets a date for determ nation
on any of the criterion. He suggested that there be | anguage in
the bill that would require the organization to notify "the
manager"” if it no |longer neets any of the nine criterion.

M5. KAPLAN responded that she thinks the Rasnmuson Foundation
woul d not have any objection to adding such | anguage.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2007



9:02: 30 AM

M5. KAPLAN, in response to a request from Representative
Gruenberg, said she would ask Ms. Brown to make the list of
organi zations available to the commttee.

9:03:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES sai d al though the |ist would be hel pful, he
does not want the bill held up while waiting for it.

M5. KAPLAN concurred with Representative Roses' desire to see
the bill nmove on to the next conmittee. She said if the bill is
held up for another year that would result in a big loss of
i ncome for nonprofit organizations.

9:03:46 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.

9:04: 17 AM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said he appreciates Representative
Gruenberg's previous reconmmendation to amend the bill "to
somehow protect the nine criteria." However, he said although
he likes "the idea,"” he is not in favor of the bill. He warned
that once check-offs are added on the PFD application, which has
al ready happened, then "it's just another, 'M, too."" He

enphasi zed how appreciative he is of the Rasmuson Foundation's
offer and its desire to see an increase in charitable giving in
Al aska; however, he said he is just not certain that this is the

best way to do it. He explained that he is not sure he wants
the state to manage such a program because once it starts
accepting that responsibility, then there will be other "steps
of responsibility that we'll pick up for people.”

9:07:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES  said he does not disagree wth
Representative Coghill's comrents. However, he noted that the
House Health, Education and Social Services Standing Committee
subcommttee recently closed out its budget, and sone decisions
were nmade to cut out sone organizations from the budget because
they could have other neans by which to raise funds. He said HB
166 woul d provi de one of those neans.

9:08: 52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG expressed concern that the unintended
net result of the bill would be to "let the state off the hook."
He expl ai ned:

If charity "A" got noney from a private source, then
the state would "defund" it. And so, the charity
would retain no nore noney than it's getting now, and
the beneficiary of this would be the State of Al aska.

And there's no protection in the bill for that. I
would like to see the charities benefit, not the State
of Al aska.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that it is okay to benefit the state. He
said it is not state's job to fund every 501(3)(c) in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded that a citizen opting to give
noney to a charity through the proposed check-off nethod on the
PFD has the right to know if that noney "may sinply go to reduce
the noney the state gives the charity.” He stated that he
t hi nks nost Al askans would not carry the reasoning as far as
Representati ve Roses' exanple; they would think their noney is
actually going to benefit the designated charities.

CHAI R LYNN pondered whether those 501(c)(3) entities not on the
[ist would be hurt.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he also shares that
concern.

9:12:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES st at ed:

If I led you to believe through ny coments that

we're looking for ... a way to supplant some of the
funds that the state is providing, that isn't what |
i ntended to say. The point | was trying to make is:
Wen we were looking ... at the Health & Social
Servi ces budget, ... we were looking for $38 mllion-

worth of cuts. The areas that we were nobst cognizant
of not trying to apply cuts were ones that had
mat ching dollars, because when you cut one dollar
there, you're actually cutting two. So, those areas
that are able to have the matching grants ... fared
the best in the budget

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expl ai ned that his prior coments pertai ned
to concern over where the contributions from the private sector
come from and how the dollars can be better leveraged to
acconplish objectives. He stated:

W're going to have to start cutting regardl ess of

where the noney conmes from or who gets it, if the oil
revenues continue to decline, which we know they're
goi ng to. ... Al I"'m saying is that the charitable

contributions are going to be nuch nore inportant in
the future than they are now, Dbecause there [are]
going to be less state dollars ....

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said although he shares Representative
Coghill's concerns regarding the dangers of opening a door and
t hen not knowi ng where it all ends, he will support HB 166.

9:15:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated that he does not think there is
anything that can be done to HB 166 to protect charities that
woul d not financially encunber future |egislatures.

9:16: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d Representative Johnson is correct.
He said he had nerely been talking about intent. To
Representative Roses, he said he has never sat on the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Conmmttee finance
subcomm ttee, but he just did not want HB 166 to be used as an
excuse to cut the charity.

9:16: 28 AM
REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she wll support HB 166, which she

described as a vehicle for a kind of voluntary tax and a neans
to help those in need.

9:17: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL reiterated his concern that those on the
list wll be the "preferred group,” and that that will create
t ensi on.

9:19: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he shares sone of Representative

Coghill's concerns. He asked if there are any recognized
charitable organizations or groups that do not neet the
criterion on page 2, lines [20-29], because he said he does not

want to elimnate them

CHAI R LYNN added that there are many organi zations that are part
of the United Way that are not on the |ist.

9:20: 25 AM

M5. BROWN said United Way's role will be sinply as a "pass-
t hrough contractor.™ She stated, "Administering this wll be
more |ike when we adm nister the Share Canpaign or the Conbined
Federal Canpaign, where the governnmental entities determ ne
who's eligible and we then sinply do the administrative work.
So, it really doesn't tie, in any way, shape, or formwth the
United Way private canpaign."” She offered further details.

M5. BROWN, in response to a question from Chair Lynn, said the
United Way, the Rasmuson Foundation, and the Foraker G oup have
set up a process by which organi zations apply to be on the Iist,

and there will be an initial review, a supervisory review, and -
any time there is a decision that an organization is not
eligible - a review by a broad, statew de panel. She stated:

In this process, we had determned it would be a very
liberal interpretation of the |anguage criteria that
Representative Guenberg was citing on page 2

[ subsection (c)]. Were we expect nost of the
[imtations - where people will not qualify - wll be
in the other issues. For instance ... they wll not
have a voluntary board, or they won't have a board
that resides in state, or they wll have been too new
to have been providing services for two years, or sone
ot her factor |ike that.

CHAIR LYNN asked if a charity's social views would have anything
to do with its qualification.

M5. BROWN answered no.
9:23: 32 AM
M5. BROWN, in response to questions from Representative Johnson,

said the United Way would nost |likely be on the list, but only
after submitting an application and qualifying. She said the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2007



United WAy has 49 service partners. She relayed that the United
Way of Anchorage always has entities trying to "join into our
unbrella.™ She said, "Qur funding goes to our services
partners, but as we work on particular issues, it can also go
broader than that. She related that when soneone "designates to
a particular organization," the United Way charges 8 percent for
adm nistrative fees. She added, "On the public canpaigns,
however, those run nore at 2 ... or 3 percent."”

M5. KAPLAN added, "However, on the permanent fund[dividend]
program as proposed, 100 percent of +the donation wll go
directly to the designated charity, because the Rasnuson
Foundati on woul d be covering those costs.™

9:25:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he will support the bill wth the
following two changes: The addition of |anguage that requires a
contract between the state and the Rasnuson Foundation, and a
provision that the charity nmust notify the organi zati on managi ng
the programif it is no longer eligible. He said it sounds like
the criteria set up are strict and structured.

9:27: 06 AM

CHAI R LYNN suggested the committee hold the bill to get those
amendnent s drafted.

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 166 was heard and hel d.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he would not be present at the next
commttee nmeeting and wants the other conmmttee nenbers to know
that he supports noving HB 166 out of comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered to speak Representative Roses'
views for the record should he be absent.

HB 151-1 NDEWMNI TY CLAUSE I N PUBLI C CONTRACTS

9:28:49 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 151, "An Act requiring an indemification and hold
harm ess provision in professional services contracts of state
agenci es, quasi-public agencies, nunicipalities, and political
subdi vi si ons. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2007



The comm ttee took an at-ease from 9:28:59 AMto 9:34:10 AM

9:34:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON, Al aska State Legislature, introduced HB
151 as sponsor by request. He said a constituent called
attention to the necessity for the bill. The constituent

illustrated the problem by saying that if soneone were to slip
on the ice in front of a state building, and soneone else were
to remark that the ice wouldn't have fallen on the sidewal k if
the building had been designed correctly, the necessity to
defend the state would go all the way to the engineer that

designed the building, irrespective of whether or not soneone
did not scrape the ice or the contractor nmay or nmay have nade a
m st ake. Representati ve Johnson relayed that the designer and

the engineer, according to sone contracts with the State of
Al aska, are responsible for defending the state in all the |egal
costs invol ved. The bill, he said, would |evel the playing
field for all contracts wth the state, as well as ensure
accountability; for exanple, the person who did not scrape the
ice would be responsible and "it wouldn't go all the way back to
t he designer.™

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said sone contractors are discouraged
from bi ddi ng, because it is very difficult to get insurance, and
t hey know that they may have to defend thenselves in sonme future
[itigation. He said only about 5 percent of the contracts with
the state put this type of responsibility on the [design
consulting conpanies], but those that do are costing extra
noney, time, and effort due to Ilitigation. He said one
uni nt ended consequence of HB 151 is that it "may bring in sone
financial consultants for the permanent fund dividend group and
the [Al aska Retirenent Managenent (ARM] Board." He stated that
that is not the intention of the proposed |egislation, and he
expressed willingness to clean up the |anguage to avoid such a
consequence.

9: 38: 55 AM

CHAIR LYNN noved to adopt Amendnent 1, |abeled 25-LS0479\C. 1,
Banni ster, 3/16/07, which read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 1, follow ng "indemification":
I nsert ", defense,"

Page 1, line 7, following "lIndemification":
I nsert ", defense,"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2007



Page 1, lines 9 - 10:

Delete "that indemifies the public agency and
hol ds the public agency harm ess"

Insert "under which the consultant agrees to
i ndemmi fy, defend, and hold harm ess the public agency
fromclains or liability"

Page 1, lines 10 - 11
Del ete "who contracts with the public agency to
provi de the professional services”

Page 1, line 12:

Delete "joint liability on a conparative fault
basi s"

Insert "the indemification, defense, and hold
harm ess obligation on a conparative fault basis where
there is joint liability"

Page 2, line 1, follow ng "indemify":
Insert ", defend,"”

Page 2, line 4, follow ng "indemify":
Insert ", defend, or hold harnmnl ess”

Page 2, line 8, follow ng "indemification":
I nsert ", defense,"”

Page 2, line 12:
Del ete "provision"
| nsert "subsection”
Page 2, follow ng line 16:
I nsert a new paragraph to read:

"(1) "consultant™ means a person Wwho
contracts with a public agency to provide professiona
services;"

Renunber the foll ow ng paragraphs accordingly.
9:38: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

9: 39: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2007



THERESA BANNI STER, Attorney, Legislative Legal and Research
Services, Al aska State Legislature, said Anmendnent 1 would add
an obligation of dissent to the | anguage of the bill.

9:39: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection.

9:40: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he woul d like t he terns
"indemi fication," "defense," and "hold harm ess" to be defined

for the record.
9:40: 26 AM

M5. BANNI STER said she would have to |l ook up the ternms indemify
and hold harmless to describe the difference between them
however, she said all three terns have always been associated
t oget her.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said defense is the obligation to
def end against the [court].

CHAIR LYNN proffered that indemify means to "bring back to the
original position."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he does not know the difference
bet ween i ndemni fi cati on and hol d harm ess.

9:41: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said Brad Thomas from Risk Managenent
suggested Anmendnent 1, and he is currently present.

CHAIR LYNN remnded the <conmttee that the objection to
Anmendnent 1 had been renpved.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that the House Judiciary
Standi ng Conmittee review the definitions when it hears the bil
next .

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN announced t hat Amendrment 1 was adopt ed.

9:42:10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said the bill would provide a policy of
fairness and address the cost to state and the difficulty of
individuals to contract with the state. He suggested the
committee focus on the bigger policy decision.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if there have been court tests
related to the aforenenti oned terns.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON deferred to Mark O Bri en.
9:43: 57 AM

MARK O BRI EN, Chief Contracts Oficer, Contracting and Appeal s

Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOT&F), regarding the terns indemification,
defense, and hold harmess, said the departnent has found this
| anguage to be adequate in protecting its concerns and has not
had any specific clainms or difficulties that required anmendnment
to that | anguage.

9:44: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked M. OBrien if there have been any
i nstances where contractors have not bid because of the barriers
referenced by the sponsor.

MR OBRIEN explained that the existing |anguage that the
departnment uses is the nodel toward which the proposed bil
intends to nove other entities; therefore, the departnent has
not experienced such a barrier.

MR OBRIEN, in response to a question from Representative
Coghill, stated that before the bill was introduced, he was
asked to look at it. At that tine, he said, he contacted both

the Ri sk Managenent Section and attorneys who work w th DOT&PF,
and "they were not aware of any problens that they had in the
recent past involving our current provision."

9:46: 15 AM

MR OBRIEN, in response to a coment from Representative
Coghill, confirmed that DOT&PF is responsible for numerous
buil dings, facilities, highways, and airports throughout the
state, so "it's fair to characterize a fairly significant

investnent in those facilities."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSQN, in response to Representative Coghill,
of fered his understanding that DOT&PF oversees construction of
approxi mately 90 percent of the state's facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, "Can you tell nme why this has not
been previously a part of contracting?”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he can't answer regarding the past;
however, he surm sed the reason this issue has not been brought
to light is due to the fact that "they weren't able to sit down

with soneone and ... draw the picture and explain ... the
inequities that existed [within] sone of the contracting to a
| egislator that would ... introduce the legislation ...."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. OBrien, "Has there been
di scussion on this very issue, looking for legal help from other
agenci es?"

MR. O BRI EN answered no. He expl ai ned:

Each owner sets up their own contractual requirenments
for how they're going to inpose the indemity and hold
harm ess provisions on the contractors that work for
them And so, they would do that in-house with advice
of their own council and have not cone to [DOT&PF] and
asked us that particular question that |'m aware of.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that Brad Thonpson is the director
of Ri sk  Managenent, and he mght provide feedback to

Representative Coghill's questions.
9:49: 46 AM
MR OBRIEN, in response to a question from Representative

Roses, said the University of Alaska has its own contracting
arm

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expl ained that he wanted to note for the
record that the bill would provide the sane security to the
university that it provides to DOT&PF.

9:51: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG, in response to Representative Doll,
explained that HB 151 has no witten effective date, thus, if

passed, it would automatically become effective 90 days after
bei ng signed by the governor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the |anguage of
AS 45.45.900, which read as foll ows:

Sec. 45.45.900. | ndemmi fication agreenents against
public policy.

A provision, clause, covenant, or agreenment contained
in, col | ateral to, or affecting a construction
contract that purports to indemify the prom see
against liability for damages for (1) death or bodily
injury to persons, (2) injury to property, (3) design
defects, or (4) other |oss, danage or expense arising
under (1), (2), or (3) of this section from the sole
negligence or wilful msconduct of the pronisee or the

prom see's agents, servants, or i ndependent
contractors who are directly responsible to the
prom see, is against public policy and is void and

unenf orceabl e; however, this provision does not affect
the wvalidity of an insurance contract workers'

conpensation, or agreenent issued by an insurer
subject to the provisions of AS 21, or a provision,
cl ause, covenant, or agreenent of indemification

respecting the handling, containnent, or cleanup of
oi | or hazardous substances as defined in AS 46.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that provision applies to the
st at e.

MR. O BRI EN responded that that is not in his area of expertise.
9:53:49 AM

BRAD THOMPSON, Director, Division of R sk Managenent, Depart nment
of Admnistration, said the division admnisters the self-
i nsurance program for state agencies only - not the University
of Alaska, the Alaska Railroad, the Al aska Housing Finance
Cor poration, or other school districts and |ocal nunicipalities.
He explained that HB 151 defines "public agencies" to enconpass
all of those other parties to follow the formthat the state has
al ready been using. He said the division advises and gives
gui dance to DOT&PF and other state departnments within its self-
insured program and wuses "various forns of boiler plate
conditions" for indemmity in contracts for pr of essi onal
servi ces. He said that is a normal business practice. The
proposed legislation, he said, would apply the state's present
busi ness practice to all other public agencies as defined. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 20, 2007



said he provided a fiscal note that shows that the bill, as
anended, uses the | anguage fromthe DOT&PF nodel .

MR. THOWPSON, in response to Representative Guenberg' s citation
of AS 45.45.900, said:

That certainly would apply to the state, but the
nuance there is that it limts the ability to contract
out your sole negligence. You cannot contract away,
in a construction contract, your own sole negligence.
The state does not do so in its construction
contracts; and it does not do so in the appendix D
which is our professional formfor design engi neers.

9: 55: 44 AM
MR. THOWPSON, in response to Representative Roses, clarified:

In our contracts, we stipulate that the independent
professional is responsible for their own deeds or
m sdeeds. And [there are] different words for it, but
that's really what we're asking them to hold us and
pr ot ect us from things that are their | egal
responsibility, and to defend us in the cases where it
is arising fromtheir |egal..

VWhat we at the sanme tine say, within that sanme clause
if there's conparative fault - if we and they are
responsi bl e for whatever occurred - we would apportion
that based on conparative fault, which is prevailing
I aw. Now, there are ... stronger stipulations of
i ndemi ty t hat woul d obl i gate t he i ndependent
professional to also protect for the conparative
allocation of the principle - the owner of the
project. W don't do so.

9:57: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if HB 151 would "provide that sane
| evel of coverage" to which M. Thonpson referred.

MR. THOMPSON responded, "I don't adm nister the risk nmanagenent
gui dance to those agencies, so | don't know the particulars, but
| " m understandi ng that they have different terns."”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON confirnmed, "That is the intent."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 20, 2007



9:57:54 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 151 was heard and hel d.

9:58:13 AM

CHAI R LYNN di scussed the conmttee's upcom ng cal endar.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
9:59:41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 20, 2007



